
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels 
(Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and 
Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 
2020) came into force on Saturday 4 April 2020 to enable 
councils to hold remote committee meetings during the 
Covid 19 pandemic period. This is to ensure local authorities 
can conduct business during this current public health 
emergency. 
 
This meeting of Cabinet will be held remotely under these 
regulations, via the Zoom application and will be webcast to 
ensure accessibility by the public and press. 

Please ask for: 
Alison Marston 

 
28 August 2020 

Dear Councillor 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET to be held on Tuesday 8 September 2020 at 5.00pm. 
 

 
Yours faithfully 

 
Corporate Director 
Public Protection, Planning and Governance 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   APOLOGIES  
 

2.   MINUTES  
 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 5 August 
2020 (previously circulated). 
 

3.   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME AND PETITIONS  
 

 Up to thirty minutes will be made available for questions from members of the 
public on issues relating to the work of the Cabinet and to receive any 
petitions. 
 

4.   ACTIONS STATUS REPORT (Pages 5 - 6) 
 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and 

Public Document Pack



Governance) on the status of actions agreed at the last Cabinet meeting. 
 

5.   NOTIFICATION OF URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER 
ITEM 10  
 

6.   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS  
 

 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-
disclosable pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of 
items on the Agenda. 
 

7.   ITEM REQUIRING KEY DECISION  
 

 To consider the following item for decision in the current Forward Plan:- 
 

(a)    Review of the Medium Term Financial Strategy (Forward Plan 
Reference FP989) (Pages 7 - 16) 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Resources, Environment and 
Cultural Services) on the summary of the Review of the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy. 
 

(b)    Queensway House Cladding (Forward Plan Reference FP1000) 
(Pages 17 - 22) 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Housing and Communities) on the 
cladding works at Queensway House. An exempt Part II report relating 
to the contract can be found under item 12b. 
 

8.   RECOMMENDATION FROM CABINET PANEL  
 

 To consider a recommendation from the meeting of the Cabinet Housing 
Panel on 14 July 2020:- 
 

(a)    Homelessness Process Report (Pages 23 - 36) 

 Recommendation from the meeting of the Cabinet Housing Panel on 
14 July 2020 on the Council’s current Homelessness Process. 
 

9.   RECOMMENDATION FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 

 To consider a recommendation from the meeting of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee on 28 July 2020:- 
 

(a)    Scrutiny on Anti-Social Behaviour (Pages 37 - 56) 

 Recommendation from the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on 28 July 2020 on the Scrutiny on Anti-Social Behaviour. 
 



10.   SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS 
OF SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION  
 

11.   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 The Cabinet is asked to resolve: 
 
That under Section 100(A)(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
press and public be now excluded from the meeting for Items 12 and 13 on 
the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt 
information as defined in Section 100(A)(3) and Paragraph 3 (private financial 
or business information) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the said Act (as 
amended). 
 
In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information. 
 

PART II 
 

12.   ITEMS OF AN EXEMPT NATURE REQUIRING KEY DECISION  
 

 To consider the following items of an exempt nature:- 
 

(a)    Award of Arboriculture Contracts (Forward Plan Reference FP998) 
(Pages 57 - 60) 

 Exempt report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning 
and Governance) on the current contracts for Arboriculture Services. 
 

(b)    Queensway House Cladding (Forward Plan Reference FP1000) 
(Pages 61 - 64) 

 Exempt report of the Corporate Director (Housing and Communities) 
on the cladding works at Queensway House. 
 

13.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF A CONFIDENTIAL OR EXEMPT NATURE AT 
THE DISCRETION OF THE CHAIRMAN  
 

 
Circulation: Councillors T.Kingsbury (Chairman) 

D.Bell (Vice-Chairman) 
S.Boulton 
T.Mitchinson 
 

N.Pace 
B.Sarson 
F.Thomson 
 

 Corporate Management Team 
Press and Public (except Part II Items) 

 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Alison 
Marston, Governance Services on 01707 357413 or email – 
democracy@welhat.gov.uk  
 

mailto:democracy@welhat.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Part I 
Main author: Alison Marston 
Executive Member: Cllr Fiona Thomson 
Not Ward Specific 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET – 8 SEPTEMBER 2020 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE) 

ACTIONS STATUS REPORT 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 In order to ensure that actions identified at meetings are completed, this report 
lists the actions from the last Cabinet meeting, those responsible for completing 
each action and its current status. 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 That Members note the status of the following actions which were identified at 
the last Cabinet meeting on 5 August 2020:- 

Minute Action Responsible 
Status/ 
Date Completed 

153.4 Article 4 Direction - Employment Sites Matt Pyecroft 
Will come into effect in 
October 2020. 

153.5 Parking Strategy Vikki Hatfield 

The strategy has 
commenced. The 
actions within the 
strategy are already in 
progress. 

153.6 
Draft Community Infrastructure Levy 
Charging Schedule 

Colin Haigh 

The consultation will 
commence in 
September and will 
run for eight weeks. 

153.7 
Award of Construction Contract for 
Tewin Road Depot 

Kirsten Roberts 

The contractor will be 
submitting the 
construction costs for 
officers to consider in 
the coming weeks to 
enable the delegated 
authority to be 
exercised. 

 
Executive Member Decision Notice – 

Mutual Exchange Policy 
Kerry Clifford 

Came into effect from 
1 August 2020.   

 
Executive Member Decision Notice – 

Succession Policy 
Kerry Clifford 

Came into effect from 
1 August 2020.   

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 

Part I 
Main authors: Ka Ng and Richard Baker 
Executive Member: Cllr Duncan Bell 
All Wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET – 8 SEPTEMBER 2020 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (RESOURCES, ENVIRONMENT AND 
CULTURAL SERVICES) 

REVIEW OF THE MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 2020/21 – 2022/23 was 
approved by Cabinet in January 2020 and it was subsequently approved by Full 
Council in February 2020.  This report summarises the review of the MTFS as 
the opening stage of the 2021/22 Budget Setting process. 

1.2 The Council is in a strong financial position with general revenue reserves 
standing at £8.6m at the start of 2020/21, which is a direct result of robust 
financial management and our excellent record in achieving efficiency savings. 
The last Peer Review report also commented positively on how the council has 
managed our finances and that the Council is in a strong financial position and 
has a proven track record of delivering savings. 

1.3 When the last MTFS was approved by Full Council, savings of £1.6m were 
required to close the budget gap in 2021/22 and at the time the Council  needed 
to find another £0.3m of efficiency savings to close the indicative budget gap in 
2022/23.  

1.4 COVID-19 is already having a significant adverse effect on the economy, it is 
also affecting the services that the council delivers as reported at various 
Committees previously.  The financial support from the government, along with 
the earmarked COVID-19 reserve set aside from the end of the last financial 
year, means that the council is not expected to be in any immediate financial risk.  
However, the scale of the impact on the economy and public finances resulting 
from COVID-19 in the medium-to long-term is unknown. 

1.5 The Council’s modernisation programme is well underway to ensure that we can 
deliver effective and efficient services that meet people’s needs and within a 
sustainable budget.  Several modernisation reviews are due to be completed by 
the end of the current financial year and that cashable savings from the reviews 
will be built into the budget setting process going forward.  

1.6 The HRA also remains in a strong position with reserves at the start of 2020/21 
amounting to £2.6m.  In particular, our current assessment is that rent collection 
levels will not be materially impacted by COVID. 

1.7 The local government financial position remains unclear beyond the current year.  
In particular, the Spending Review covering 2021/22 – 2023/24 departmental 
expenditure limits will not be confirmed until the Autumn.  Although the 
government announced in April that the fair funding review and the 75% business 
rates retention system would no longer be implemented in 2021/22, it is unclear 

Page 7

Agenda Item 7a



- 2 - 

whether elements of the existing business rates retention system will change and 
the impact this would have on our income level.  

1.8 This report sets out the broad principles and objectives for setting the next 
Budget and also examining the key issues and pressures facing the Council in 
the medium term.  It should be noted that the Council has been proactive in 
identifying savings required for future years and that the council’s modernisation 
agenda will play a central part to ensure our financial sustainability going forward.  

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 Cabinet is asked to note the contents of this report and to approve the principles 
to be adopted for the 2021/22 budget setting process as highlighted in section 
3.3.6, in particular the 2021/22 budget setting process should focus on closing 
the indicative budget gap beyond next year. 

3 Explanation 

3.1 Financial Position (approved by Full Council in February 2020) 

3.1.1 The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) approved by the Council in 
February 2020 shows that the Council delivered a balanced budget for 2020/21, 
but that the Council had challenging savings targets to meet over the next two 
years.  

3.1.2 Table 1 below summarises the indicative budget gap in the MTFS agreed by Full 
Council in February 2020: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 8



 

- 3 - 

  2020/21 Budget 2021/22 Forecast 
2022/23 

Forecast 

  £000 £000 £000 

Cost of Services       

Employees 
                   

14,111  
                     

14,386  
                   

14,717  

Premises 

                     

3,496  

                       

3,566  

                    

3,637  

Supplies and Services 
                     

5,022  
                       

4,923  
                    

4,932  

Transport 
                        

102  
                         

103  
                       

103  

Third Party Payments 
                   

13,831  
                     

14,108  
                   

14,390  

Transfer Payments 
                   

28,323  
                     

28,323  
                   

28,323  

Income 
(45,654) (46,215) (46,513) 

Net Recharge to HRA 
(5,366) (5,474) (5,582) 

Net Cost of Services 

                  

13,865  

                    

13,720  

                  

14,007  

        

Impact of previous savings     
(1,587) 

Revised Net Cost of Services 
                  

13,865  
                    

13,720  
                  

12,420  

        

Other Income and Expenditure       

Income from Council Tax (10,781) (11,051) (11,327) 

Business Rates Retained (4,908) (4,070) (4,150) 

Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit 1,472  0  0  

New Homes Bonus Grant (1,028) (357) (156) 

Interest Income (30) (157) (242) 

Capital Financing (Leases, 
contributions to capital, interest, 
minimum revenue provision) 

1,509  1,899  2,104  

Parish Precepts 
1,627  1,668  1,709  

Contributions from Earmarked 

Reserves 

(1,329) (65) (15) 

Contributions to Pensions Reserve 
1,200  0  0  

Planned use of working Balances 
(1,597) 0  0  

Total Other Income and 
Expenditure (13,865) (12,133) (12,076) 

        

Savings Target (Single Year) 
0                        

1,587  
                       

343  

  
  

    

Savings Target (Cumulative) 

0                        

1,587  

                    

1,930  

 

Page 9



- 4 - 

 

3.2    Changes in Budget Assumptions since February 2020 

COVID-19 

3.2.1 The key change since the MTFS was last approved is the impact of COVID-19 
on the council’s finances.  The council continues to face expenditure pressures in 
services such as leisure and homelessness.  We are also faced with substantial 
income shortfall, although part of this would be covered by the government’s 
income guarantee.  As reported to Cabinet previously, the estimated impact to 
General Fund amounts to £4.8m, of which £2m relates to collection fund impact 
that will affect future years’ budgets.  Taking into account the government 
support available to date of £1.5m and plus the £0.4m COVID-19 reserve set up 
at the end of 19/20, the net impact is around £0.9m.  It should be noted that the 
government has already stated that the collection fund deficit (estimated to be 
£2m) can be phased over 3 years.  The revised gap is shown in the table below. 
The government has announced that further support will be available via an 
income guarantee, which supports a substantial amount of projected fees and 
charges income losses in 20/21, will help to reduce the budget impact further.  
The benefit of the income guarantee is not included in the table below but will be 
monitored as part of budget monitoring going forward. 

  
2020/21 
Forecast 

2021/22  
Forecast 

2022/23 
Forecast 

  £000 £000 £000 

Budget Gap - Full Council Feb 2020 0  1,587  1,930  

COVID 19 impact as reported in Q1 
(21/22 & 22/23 shows the estimated 

£2m collection fund deficit to be 
spread over 3 years) 938 

                         
667  

                       
667  

Revised Budget Gap Aug 2020 938  2,254  2,597  

 

3.2.2 It is unlikely that the fees and charges income would return to normal next year 
as the economy suffered its largest slump on record between April and June this 
year and the recession is likely to last for some time.  A comprehensive review of 
all fees and charges income will be carried out over the coming months. 

Spending Review (SR) 

3.2.3 The Government had previously stated its intention to hold a multi-year SR in 
2020.  In July 2020, it was confirmed that the next SR covering Government 
departments’ resource budgets for the years 2021/22 to 2023/24 would be 
announced in Autumn 2020.  Given the state of the economy and the additional 
COVID-19 cost pressures faced by the Treasury, it is widely expected that this 
will have a severe impact on the level of local government funding going forward. 

Fair Funding Review (FFR) 

3.2.4 The Government has previously indicated their desire to review the funding 
baseline for local authorities and the fair funding review was due to be 
implemented in 2021/22.  In April 2020, the Secretary of State has announced 
that fair funding review will be delayed further due to COVID-19.  It is likely that 
the 21/22 funding baseline will continue to be based on existing formula. 

Page 10



 

- 5 - 

Reforming Business Rates Retention (RBRR) 

3.2.5 The Government has been consulting in the past few years on the reform of the 
business rates retention system and how the 75% business rates retention 
system should look like. The reform looked at a number of the key factors, such 
as the frequency at which the system should be ‘reset’, the level at which safety 
net is set, and the apportionment of income between preceptors. During 2019, it 
was announced that the reform of the business rates retention system would be 
deferred to 2021/22.  However, in April 2020, the government announced that the 
75% business rates retention system will not be implemented in 2021/22 

3.2.6 Welwyn Hatfield is currently in a Business Rates Pool; however the pool will end 
at the end of March 2021 and it is unclear whether there would be an opportunity 
to apply for business rates pooling scheme in 2021/22. 

3.2.7 It should also be noted that the business rates baseline was also due to be reset 
in 2021/22, at the time of writing this report, the government has not indicated 
whether this will go ahead.  Welwyn Hatfield has experienced a relatively high 
business rates growth in the past few years, prior to COVID-19.  It was expected 
that the business rates baseline would increase in the event of a reset, meaning 
that it will be harder to achieve a higher business rates growth in the future, other 
things being equal.  This will mean that the amount of business rates retained 
locally is likely to be reduced should the baseline be revised upwards.  

New Homes Bonus Reform 

3.2.8 At the time of the 2020/21 local government finance settlement, the Government 
indicated that they would consult on the future of the New Homes Bonus in 
Spring 2020.  It was expected that this would include moving to a new, more 
targeted approach which is aligned with other measures around planning 
performance.  At this stage, it is unclear when the consultation will take place and 
the MTFS assumes no new payments will be made and the amounts are only the 
legacy payment from previous years. This means there is a significant reduction 
to the grant assumed for 2021/22. 

Council Tax Referendum Limits  

3.2.9 The 2020/21 Council Tax Referendum Limits for district councils were set at the 
higher of £5 or 2%.  It is unknown at this stage what the referendum limits would 
be for future years, but our MTFS currently assumes a 1.5% council tax increase 
for 2020/21. 

Pay Award 

3.2.10 The council forms part of the National Joint Council (NJC) pay agreement. The 
pay award for the current year has not been settled yet and will remain an 
uncertain position until an agreement is reached nationally.  

3.2.11 The MTFS assumes a 2% pay increase for future years.  

3.3 Options to Address the Budget Gap 

3.3.1 The Council’s financial strategy remains to support an affordable level of council 
tax by reducing costs, maximising income, sharing good practice, simplifying 
delivery processes and shrinking the Council’s administration cost. 

Page 11



- 6 - 

3.3.2 In light of the continued uncertainties and risks set out in section 3.2, 
consideration will be given to a range of options for services to deliver savings for 
the 2021/22 budget setting process. 

3.3.3 The use of reserves will be considered as part of the budget setting process; 
however this will need to balance the need for a minimum reserve level that the 
Council must retain to meet any unanticipated costs arising in any given year, 
and ensure an adequate level of reserves is maintained for delivery of corporate 
aims and objectives. 

3.3.4 We achieved a positive outturn on the 2019/20 financial position, and all services 
budgets were reviewed last year as part of the budget reset exercise.  This 
resulted in £0.8m of ongoing savings.  The opportunities for further savings will 
come from the council’s modernisation programme, which is well underway. 

3.3.5 Notwithstanding the above, the Council has a challenging target of savings to 
meet, and proposals will be worked through with member portfolio holders and 
Cabinet over the autumn months.  

3.3.6 In order to ensure progress can be made at the pace required to deliver the 
financial challenge, it is recommended that the 2021/22 budget setting process 
should adopt the following principles: 

 Review the Policy on Reserves and Balances to ensure that it supports the 
delivery of the corporate priorities, COVID recovery and the council’s 
modernisation agenda. 

 Budget growth (including one-offs growths) should be the last resort and they are 
primarily reserved for invest to save projects. 

 Frontline services will be protected wherever possible, but savings should be 
considered as part of modernisation reviews to make the services more efficient 
and effective for our residents 

 Services will need to find savings/income to fund budget pressures.  

 As in previous years, all the budget growth will be subject to approval by Cabinet. 

 Improve income generated through fees and charges following a review on the 
existing fees and charges policy. All (non-statutorily set) fees and charges will 
increase by a minimum of inflation except in exceptional circumstances (where 
there is a clear case for not doing so).  

 Expected savings from Modernisation Reviews as approved by the 
Modernisation Board will be removed from services budget and put forward as 
savings proposals 

 Savings proposals must be submitted with a view to find ways to address the 
budget gap beyond 2021/22. 

3.4 Housing Revenue Account 

3.4.1 The budget and longer term forecasts were prepared on the basis of the 
following high level principles: 

Page 12



 

- 7 - 

 The Council will continue to maintain existing stock to at least decent homes 
standard. 

 The Council will continue with its aim to maintain stock levels at around 9,000 
dwellings. 

 The Council will continue to develop new homes through its Affordable Housing 
Programme, to fully make use of the retained right to buy receipts available to it 
and replace those properties sold through Right to Buy. 

 The Council will continue to take a balanced approach to its level of Housing 
debt, borrowing to support development and ensuring some flexibility is 
maintained for any future legislative or policy changes.  

3.4.2 No material changes have been made to the assumptions in the HRA forecast. 
The Housing Company has been launched and that the first transaction is 
expecting to take place in the next few months. A summary of the forecasts for 
the HRA as approved by Full Council in February is shown in the following table.  
The HRA has a good track record in rent collection and despite the current 
challenging circumstances, the rent collection is not adversely impacted.  
However, it should be noted that some of the other non-rent income have been 
impacted due to COVID-19 and the estimated revenue impact amounts to 
£0.168m, this will further add to the 20/21 deficit position. 

 

Page 13



- 8 - 

3.5 Capital Programme and Borrowing 

3.5.1 The Capital Programme has been structured to enable delivery of the Council's 
Business Plan and the HRA Business Plan over the medium to long term.  

3.5.2 The Programme includes all of the capital schemes within both the General Fund 
and the Housing Revenue for 2020/21 to 2024/25.  

3.5.3 Although there are some schemes expected to be re-phased from 2020/21, 
which are reported through the regular budget monitoring reports, it is not 
anticipated at this stage that this will impact on the Councils finances over the 
five year period, as the funding of the schemes will also be rephrased in line with 
project expenditure. 

3.5.4 There are risks around the cost of capital projects increasing, particularly in 
relation to ensuring worksites can maintain social distancing, needing to increase 
welfare facilities and cleaning and general inflationary increases in construction 
and goods. Capital schemes are being closely monitored, and we are working 
closely with contractors to minimise these risks.  

3.5.5 During 2020, the Government has been consulting on borrowing activity, in 
particular, the introduction of restrictions for investment activity. Such changes 
would not impact the council as we have no capital projects which are wholly for 
investment returns. The Government intends to lower borrowing rates, subject to 
making changes which introduce restrictions around such investments and the 
council would directly benefit from these rate reductions for new borrowing.  

3.5.6 The majority of the Councils borrowing requirement is generated through the 
Housing Revenue Account, which is continuing to see a moderated level of right 
to buy sales.  In order to maximise the use of the receipts it can retain, the 
Council is committed to the continuation of the Affordable Housing Programme 
(AHP). This programme will create income generating assets, which will cover 
the cost of external borrowing. 

3.5.7 The Council will continue to borrow externally for the HRA to support the 
continuation of the AHP, and to refinance part of its current debt, but will take 
advantage of the historically low interest rates and minimise interest costs 
through utilising a mix of sort and long term borrowing in line with the Treasury 
Management Strategy.  

3.5.8 Current forecasts show the Capital Programme as affordable, but do highlight 
that the General Fund capital balances will be significantly reduced by the end of 
the programme. This will need to be considered in the longer term context, and 
will form part of the 2021/22 budget setting process.   

3.6 Next Steps 

3.6.1 The Council’s budget setting process integrates service and financial planning 
into a single, seamless process and aims to ensure that resource allocation both 
reflects corporate priorities and is affordable.   

3.6.2 Over the autumn months, officers will be preparing assessments of their service 
that take into account the Council’s policies, priorities and performance, national 
policy, service and budget risks, and value for money.  

Page 14



 

- 9 - 

3.6.3 The resulting growth and savings options will include an assessment of their 
service and financial impact, achievability, sustainability and equalities impact. 
These options will be reported to Cabinet in January together with overall 
proposals for the Council’s budget. 

4 Risk Management Implications 

4.1 There continue to be a high level of uncertainties from a funding perspective. The 
Council has been prudent in its assumptions, basing forecasts on previous 
information and the most up to date information available. These uncertainties do 
however lead to a high level of risk that the savings requirement could be impacted 
by national announcements.  

5 Security & Terrorism Implication(s) 

5.1 There are no security or terrorism implications arising from this report. 

6 Procurement Implication(s) 

6.1 There are no procurement implications arising from this report.   

7 Climate Change Implication(s) 

7.1 There are no direct climate change implications to consider. 

8 Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

8.1 There are no direct health and wellbeing implications to consider. 

9 Link to Corporate Priorities 

9.1 The subject of this report directly linked to the delivery of all of the Councils 
objectives.  

10 Communications and Engagement 

10.1 Part of the 2021/22 budget communication and engagement plan includes 
engaging with opposition members early and the first budget seminar is 
scheduled to be delivered to all Members on 26 August.  Engagement with public 
and businesses will be put into place once more details about the budget 
proposals are available.  

11 Equality and Diversity 

11.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out in connection with 
the proposals as there are no equalities or diversities issues arising from the 
report. 

 
Name of author   Ka Ng and Richard Baker 
Title                     Corporate Director (Resources, Environment and Cultural Services) 
and Head of Resources 
Date                    21 August 2020 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Classification: Personal/Sensitive 

 

 

 

Classification: Personal/Sensitive 

 
- 1 - 

 

Part I 
Main author: Tina Warren 
Executive Member: Cllr Nick Pace 
Hatfield Central Ward 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET – 8TH SEPTEMBER 2020  
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (HOUSING AND COMMUNITIES) 
 
QUEENSWAY HOUSE CLADDING removal – PHASE 2 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 This report details further cladding removal works at Queensway House, needed 
to comply with the recommendations made in the External Wall Fire Review 
(EWS1) report and the requirements of Hertfordshire Fire and Rescue Service.  

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 That pursuant to Contract Procedure Rule 14 (k) (Alternative Procedures in 
Prescribed Circumstances) Cabinet agrees to waive the requirement for a 
competition to be carried out and for five (5) tenders to be obtained, on the basis 
that it is to the advantage of the Council that this rule should be waived”; 

2.2 That Cabinet approves the direct award of a contract to Borras Construction 
Limited for Phase 2 Cladding Removal at Queensway House. 

2.3 Further information relating to this contract is contained within the associated 
Part II report, this being exempt from this Part I on the basis that it contains 
financial information relating to the contract, as such exempt from publication. 

3 Explanation 

3.1 In January 2020, the Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government 
published the document ‘Building Safety Advice for Building Owners, Including 
Fire Doors’, which advised building owners of their responsibility for ensuring the 
safety of their buildings. 

 
3.2 The report states that existing residential buildings which have external walls that 

contain combustible materials may not meet an appropriate standard of safety 
and could pose a significant risk to the health and safety of residents, other 
building users, people in the proximity of the building or firefighters.  

  

Page 17

Agenda Item 7b



Classification: Personal/Sensitive 

 

 

 

Classification: Personal/Sensitive 

 
- 2 - 

 

3.3 An External Wall Fire Safety Review (EWS1) of Queensway revealed that the 
coloured render board with phenolic foam insulation (yellow cladding) and 
Kingspan Ecosafe PIR (metal corner cladding) utilise materials that are not 
considered to be of limited combustibility. Furthermore, there is no evidence that 
cavity barriers were incorporated into the design of the cladding system, which 
was installed in 2012.  This is on the basis that we have no evidence that the 
contractor who fitted the cladding received formal approval from Building Control.  

 
3.4 The EWS1 report therefore recommends that the yellow cladding and metal 

corner cladding is removed from Queensway House. The EWS1 report does not 
state timescales for when this work must be done, however Hertfordshire Fire 
and Rescue Service measure the urgency by the effect an external routed fire 
could have on both types of cladding, and the potential to contribute to its spread. 

 
3.5 The Fire Service advised that the yellow cladding above the front entrance door 

presented a higher risk to fire fighters and residents evacuating the building. 
Acting on this advice, the council has removed both types of cladding, up to the 
third-floor level (Phase 1). This reduced the risk of fire spread from the Citizens 
Advice office and the ground floor shops to both the phenolic insulate cladding 
and the PIR. 

3.6      Borras Construction were immediately appointed as the contractor for the Phase 
1 cladding removal at Queensway House, with the prior approval of the Council’s 
Risk and Resilience Manager, under the special dispensation that Phase 1 was 
an emergency Health and Safety requirement. 

3.7 At the time the Phase 1 cladding removal took place, plans to remove the 
cladding on the remaining floors (Phase 2) were discussed. Should the 
communal landings be affected by fire and smoke, the cladding contributes to a 
heightened risk that residents may not be able to evacuate. It is important to note 
that measures agreed by the Fire Service are in place to manage this risk, 
including the 24/7 waking watch service, which ensures residents can be 
evacuated swiftly in the event of a fire – and the removal of cladding up to the 
third floor. 

3.8     The need was also negated by special technical advice, which recommended 
that     a fire suppression system be installed within the flats. 

3.9 The fire suppression system is no longer a cost-effective option now that 
Queensway House is earmarked for demolition and residents are being 
decanted. However, whilst negotiations with residents are complicated and 
ongoing, timescales for decommissioning the building cannot be confirmed.  

3.10 Therefore, in lieu of a fire suppression system, and whilst residents are in-situ, 
the fire service have requested that the council remove the yellow render and 
metal corner cladding from the remaining storeys. 

  

Page 18



Classification: Personal/Sensitive 

 

 

Classification: Personal/Sensitive 

 
- 3 - 

3.11 The cost to undertake the Phase 2 cladding removal is set out in the Part II 
report, under agenda item 12b. For a contract with a value of £100,000 and over 
Contract Procedure Rules, require: (i) a competition to be carried out; (ii) a 
minimum of five (5) tenders to be obtained; (iii) for tenders received to be 
evaluated on a mixture of price and quality, and (iv) for the process to be 
overseen by the Procurement Board.  However, Contract Procedure Rule 14 
makes provision for departure from the requirements of the Rules in certain, 
specified, circumstances.  One such circumstance is ‘where the Cabinet agrees a 
report from a Corporate Director detailing a case where it is to the advantage of 
the Council that these rules should be waived’. 

3.12 Considering the fact that, typically, procurement of contracts of this value can 
take a considerable amount of time, it will be to the advantage of the Council to 
use the Phase 1 Contractor to undertake the Phase 2 cladding removal, due to 
their experience of this work.  

3.13 Other small works contractors within the Council’s framework will not have the 
resource to undertake this sort of task and respond quickly. This includes Mears 
who are our incumbent repairs and maintenance contractor.  

3.14 Cabinet should note that initial conversations with Local Authority Building 
Control (LABC) suggest the cladding must be replaced with a non-combustible 
cladding to comply with Part L Building Regulations guidance. Officers will, 
however, be asking LABC to take into consideration the future of the building and 
request that senior members of LABC should make a special dispensation in this 
instance. 

 
3.15 Cabinet should also note that initial discussions with Planning confirm that the 

Phase 2 Cladding removal does not require planning consent when taking the 
building back to its original structure. However, if replacement for the existing 
cladding is required, a full planning application and planning approval obtained.   

 
Implications 

4. Legal Implications 

4.1 The removal of the cladding is a ‘works’ contract for the purposes of The Public 
Contracts Regulations 2015.  The contract value is below the threshold for works 
contracts and, therefore, the contract will not trigger the application of the 
Regulations. 

4.2 With respect to the Council’s own Contract Procedure Rules, Cabinet has 
authority to waive the application of the competition requirements in certain, 
specified circumstances, subject to compliance with European procurement 
rules.  One such circumstance is set out in paragraph 3.11 (above) of this report. 

5. Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 In the first instance, the Council will apply to the government’s Building Safety 
Fund, introduced in 2020, for the remediation of unsafe non-ACM cladding 
systems. 

Page 19



Classification: Personal/Sensitive 

 

 

 

Classification: Personal/Sensitive 

 
- 4 - 

 

5.2  In the event that the Council’s application is declined, the works will still be 
carried out but accommodated in existing capital budgets in the HRA. A total of 
£1.713m has been rolled forward from previous years, of which £0.900m is 
earmarked for works at Queensway and Inspira House. 

6. Risk Management Implications 

 Enforcement, Improvement and similar Notices 
 
6.1 Hertfordshire Fire and Rescue Service have provided advice and assistance to 

the Council in planning and prioritising remedial fire safety work at Queensway 
House, including the removal of the ‘Phase 2’ cladding, of which the urgency is 
stated within this report.   

 
6.2 Failure to prioritise remedial fire safety work in line with the advice given by the 

fire service may result in Hertfordshire Fire and Rescue Service issuing a 
Regulatory Notice calling for corrective action.  

 
6.3 Additionally, if remedial fire safety work is not remedied within a set period of 

time, the fire service have powers under Article 31 of the Regulatory Reform (Fire 
Safety) Order 2005 and Sections 21 and 22 of the Health and Safety at Work etc. 
Act 1974, to prohibit the use of the whole or part of premises or to restrict the use 
of premises, particularly where conditions are found that constitute a serious risk 
to life or injury to persons in the event of fire. 

 
6.4 The Council continue to work closely with Hertfordshire Fire and Rescue Service 

regarding the progress of remedial work required at Queensway House and 
patrols are in place to provide urgent assistance when necessary. 

 
 Communication 
 
6.5 In January 2020, Queensway House residents were notified in writing, that whilst 

we progress moving everyone from Queensway House, we are continuing to 
work closely with the fire service to put all possible safety measures in place 
throughout the building. 

 
6.6 This letter outlined what fire remedial work the Council plans to undertake over 

the coming months and this included removing sections of the external cladding. 
 
6.7 Residents will be written to and provided with information as to why the cladding 

is being removed and given an opportunity to meet with a council surveyor to put 
forward any questions that they may have about this work. It will also detail what 
residents can expect in terms of communication and who they should contact to 
raise any future concerns. 

 
  

Page 20



Classification: Personal/Sensitive 

 

 

Classification: Personal/Sensitive 

 
- 5 - 

7. Security & Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 There are no security or terrorism implications with the recommendations in this 
report.  

8. Procurement Implication(s) 

8.1 The recommendation is in accordance with the Public Contracts Regulations 
2015. 

9 Climate Change Implication(s) 

9.1 The proposals in this report will not impact on greenhouse gas emissions. 

10. Human Resources Implication(s) 

10.1 There are none. 

11. Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

11.1 There are none.  

12. Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 

12.1 None directly from this report 

13. Link to Corporate Priorities 

13.1 The subject of this report is linked to the following Council’s Corporate Priorities ‘ 
Our Housing’ specifically to be a Quality Landlord’  

14. Equalities and Diversity 

14.1 An EqIA was not completed because this report does not propose changes to 
existing service-related policies or the development of new service-related 
policies 

 
Name of author: Tina Warren 
Title: Compliance Manager  
Date: July 2020 
 

 

 

 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Part I 
Item No:  
For Decision 

 
 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET – 8 SEPTEMBER 2020  
 
Recommendation from the Cabinet Housing Panel on 14 July 2020:- 
 
HOMELESSNESS PROCESS REPORT 
 
Members considered the report of the Corporate Director (Housing and Communities) which 
sets out the current process for determining how the Council assessed applicants’ 
homelessness, and how it consequently dealt with those that it assessed as homeless. The 
report sought approval to continue the current process. This housing function was carried 
out by the Housing Options Team.  
 
 RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the report be noted. 

2. That the continuation of the current procedure as set out below in Paragraphs 
3.40 to 3.46 of the report was approved 

 
 
 
 
 
Cabinet are asked to note the report and agree the continuation of the current 
procedure as outlined within the report. 

Page 23

Agenda Item 8a



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 

Part I 
Main author: David Trewick 
Executive Member: Nick Pace 
Hollybush Ward 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET – TUESDAY 8 SEPTEMBER 2020 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (HOUSING AND COMMUNITIES) 

ASSESSING HOMELESSNESS (PRIVATE SECTOR) 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 This report sets out the current process for determining how the Council assesses 
applicants’ homelessness, and how it consequently deals with those that it 
assesses as homeless and seeks approval to continue the current process. This 
housing function is carried out by the Housing Options Team.  

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 Members are asked to:- 

2.1.1 note the content of the report 

2.1.2 consider the current procedure for dealing with applicants who are homeless or 
threatened with homelessness as a result of their private sector tenancy coming 
to an end and the possible alternatives as detailed below at Paragraph 3.59 

2.1.3 consider the additional demands and pressures placed on the Council’s Housing 
Needs service since the start of the COVID19 crisis, noting information in 
paragraphs 3.50 to 3.58 

2.1.4 approve the continuation of the current procedure as set out below in Paragraphs 
3.40 to 3.46 of this report. 

3 Explanation 

3.1 The Housing Options team sits within the Housing Needs team, which is under the 
Communities and Housing Strategy Service.  

3.2 The Housing Options team is responsible for carrying out statutory functions under 
homelessness legislation.  

3.3 Led by the Housing Options Manager, the team comprises 14 officers in total, (13 
full time equivalent) which includes a Senior Housing Options Officer, a support 
officer, seven housing options officers and the Temporary Accommodation Team 
(four officers in total) 

3.4 The statutory functions include: 

o carrying out assessments on those who approach the council for housing 
assistance 

o determining whether applicants are homeless or threatened with 
homelessness 

Page 25



- 2 - 

o providing advice and assistance to prevent and relieve homelessness 

o determining whether a duty to accommodate is owed towards applicants 
who are eligible and homeless and providing accommodation when such a 
duty is owed.  

3.5 Local authorities have a duty to provide temporary accommodation when an 
applicant is eligible for assistance (meaning they are able to access public funds), 
homeless (meaning they have no accommodation available to them), and meet a 
certain level of vulnerability (known as being in a priority need).  

3.6 Most applicants are housed due to pregnancy or because they have dependent 
children. These are known as automatic priority need criteria. 

3.7 The other main group triggering a housing duty, are deemed vulnerable (they are 
deemed significantly more vulnerable than an ordinary person faced with 
homelessness)  

3.8 Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council has several sites of temporary accommodation, 
in different areas of the Borough.   At the time of writing there were 119 households 
in temporary accommodation, which includes designated temporary 
accommodation, properties let on non-secure tenancies and specialist refuge 
accommodation.  There were nine households in temporary hotel accommodation. 

3.9 The council also has arrangements with a number of supported housing providers 
and in recent years has developed new initiatives in partnership with voluntary 
organisations; examples of local specialist and supported housing are  YMCA, 
Foyer, Mably House, Hatfield Night Shelter, Emerging Futures (HCC 
commissioned) and our own Housing First project, delivered by Drug Link. 

3.10 Despite ongoing work to prevent homelessness and to develop pathways into 
settled accommodation, the council’s temporary accommodation has been at 
capacity since approximately March 2018.  

Assessing applicants 

3.11 Assessment of eligibility is based on the applicant’s status in the UK – an applicant 
is either eligible or not eligible because of their status in the UK, whether they are 
British or not. Non-UK nationals can be eligible, and UK nationals can be deemed 
not eligible, dependent on their circumstances.  

3.12 Assessment of homelessness is based on whether the applicant has 
accommodation available to them, which is reasonable for their continued 
occupation. A person may be homeless despite owning accommodation that they 
cannot access, or if it poses a risk to their health were they to return to the 
accommodation which they own. 

3.13 Assessment of vulnerability is based on the person’s personal details, including 
but not limited to the circumstances of their physical and mental health.  

Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 

3.14 The most recent homelessness legislation to come into effect is the Homelessness 
Reduction Act 2017 (HRA), which became law in April 2018. This increased the 
assistance that local authorities are required to give to households who are 
homeless or threatened with homelessness. 

Page 26



- 3 - 

3.15 There was a change in the period which defined when an applicant is threatened 
with homelessness from 28 days to 56 days  

3.16 A requirement to issue a Personalised Housing Plan came into effect, with advice 
to be provided and the setting out of steps to take for every customer who is 
homeless or threatened with homelessness  

3.17 New Prevention and Relief duties were set, increasing the length of time a case 
was dealt with by the Local Authority  

3.18 A Duty to Refer for specified public bodies was introduced, including Probation 
services, Prisons, Jobcentres, Social Services departments and hospitals.  

3.19 The new law also stated that all tenants who had received a valid section 21 notice 
were to be treated as threatened with homelessness, regardless of the notice 
period.  

Causes of homelessness  

3.20 There are many causes of homelessness but there are particular reasons which 
are often the most frequently recorded.  

3.21 Family evictions and domestic abuse have for a long time been the main causes 
of homelessness, but in the last few years private sector evictions have increased 
and now appear regularly in the top three.  

3.22 In all cases, attempts are made to prevent the need for a homeless application. 
This is usually done by speaking to and negotiating with the excluder and trying to 
find alternative ways to resolve the housing problems without the need for 
placement into temporary accommodation.  

3.23 For obvious reasons, it is not possible to speak to perpetrators of domestic abuse, 
and those cases are dealt with differently. 

Scale of Demand 

3.24 In order to demonstrate the workload of the Housing Options team, the following 
numbers are provided (rounded up): 

 Number of customers approaching the service (monthly – 2018/19): 100 

 Number of customers approaching the service (annually – 2018/19): 1195 

 Number of customers approaching the service (monthly – 2019/20): 104 

 Number of customers approaching the service (annually – 2019/20):  1258 

 Current caseload of team: 250 (160 open cases without decision/90 cases 
with decision) 

 Current caseload per officer (4.5 full time equivalent due to maternity 
vacancies): 56 cases (35 open cases without decision/21 cases with 
decision) 

 Current number of households in Temporary Accommodation: 119 

Page 27



- 4 - 

3.25 The changing demand upon Temporary Accommodation is demonstrated with 
appendix A.  

3.26 In January 2016 temporary accommodation numbers were well within capacity. 
However since the spike in numbers, we have taken on additional sites of 
accommodation in order to deal with the increased numbers.  The longer term 
strategy is to develop two larger, modern purpose built sites, one in Hatfield and 
one in Welwyn Garden City.  It is anticipated that this, supplemented by some 
specialist provision, will meet demand. 

Private Sector Evictions 

3.27 There can sometimes be particular attention paid to how local authorities deal with 
private sector evictions, and an element of friction between the private sector and 
local authorities.  

3.28 This friction can essentially be distilled down to a difference of priorities and 
opposing views on what action should be taken when a tenant is required to leave 
the accommodation.  

3.29 Private Sector landlords/agents, who have issued Notice to their tenants, usually 
would prefer the tenants to leave as soon as possible, without the need for any 
court action to be taken to remove them.  

3.30 Local Authorities are required to assist and advise applicants as to their housing 
rights, as well as steps they should take to alleviate threatened homelessness.  
This will always include advising a tenant of their right to remain in the 
accommodation pending a court order. 

3.31 Depending on an individual’s circumstances and/or the situation in terms of 
availability of alternative accommodation for the applicant, the council may also 
advise the tenant to stay at the property until their legal right of occupation has 
concluded. 

3.32 There is a balance to be struck in dealing with cases. The Housing Options team 
are very aware of the competing interests and try to manage them as best as 
possible. However ultimately the priority is the customer’s housing situation.  

3.33 The landlord is contacted in all cases so that the reasons for eviction are known 
and to see if the tenancy can be saved.  

3.34 If it is possible to prevent homelessness, steps are taken to facilitate that outcome. 
If it isn’t possible, the tenants are advised of their rights, and provided with advice 
to seek alternative accommodation. Advice also includes steps that need to be 
taken by Council officers and the tenant themselves. 

Guidance from Government 

3.35 There is guidance to authorities on how to act in cases involving private sector 
evictions. The most recent Code of Guidance was published in 2018, but Guidance 
can include letters by ministers issued to local authorities.  

3.36 In 2016 a letter was issued by then Housing Minister Brandon Lewis providing 
further guidance to local authorities about how to deal with section 21 notices and 
intentional homelessness.  

Page 28



- 5 - 

3.37 The guidance advised authorities not to routinely advise tenants to stay until the 
bailiffs arrive and reminded them that there is no barrier to them assisting the 
tenant before this. 

3.38 It said that housing authorities should not, in every case, insist upon a court order 
for possession, that no local authority should adopt a blanket policy in this case 
and that unless a local authority has very good reason to depart from the statutory 
guidance then they should not be placing households in this position. 

3.39 As well as the factors set out elsewhere in this Guidance, factors which may be 
relevant include the general cost to the housing authority. 

WHBC processes  

3.40 The Housing Options team operate within all guidance provided by Government, 
and there has been no legal challenge to any procedures by applicants or other 
parties on this issue.  

3.41 There have been enquiries from several private sector landlords, questioning the 
policies and processes that the Housing Options team work to. The essence of the 
enquiries is the expectation that Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council will provide 
alternative accommodation when the notice expires, regardless of the tenant’s 
circumstances.  

3.42 When a valid section 21 notice is issued, the Housing Options Team considers the 
applicant as homeless at the expiry of that notice. This is not dependent on 
anything and is an approach that is followed consistently. The relevant duties are 
accepted towards the applicant at that stage and the applicant is notified.  

3.43 Whether accommodation is provided will be dependent on several factors 
including: 

 Whether WHBC owes a duty to accommodate (taking into account the 
criteria set out above in points 3.11 to 3.13).  

 Whether WHBC has available suitable temporary accommodation  

3.44 If no duty to accommodate exists, the tenant will be advised to look for alternative 
accommodation, but also of their right to remain in the property until a court order 
is obtained or until they secure somewhere else to live. The alternative would mean 
the tenant leaving the property and being homeless and potentially roofless.  

3.45 If a duty to accommodate exists, but there is currently no suitable temporary 
accommodation available for the applicant, the tenant will be advised to look for 
alternative accommodation, but also of their right to remain in the property until a 
court order is obtained, until they secure somewhere else to live or temporary 
accommodation becomes available for them. The alternative would mean housing 
the tenant in hotel accommodation instead of their own home. 

3.46 If there is a duty to accommodate and there is available temporary 
accommodation, the tenant will be accommodated around the time of the expiry of 
the section 21 notice.  

  

Page 29



- 6 - 

Impact of Private Sector Evictions 

3.47 As advised at 3.21, Private sector evictions is one of the leadings causes of 
homelessness.  

3.48 Since April 2018 when the HRA came into effect, we have collected data for each 
customer. This allows us to analyse reasons for homelessness.  

3.49 The date shows that in the two years since the HRA came into effect: 
 

 Eviction from Private sector accommodation was the second most common 
cause of homelessness in Welwyn Hatfield, with the leading cause of 
homelessness being ‘relatives asking an applicant to leave their 
accommodation’. 

 In 2018/19 there were 186 approaches, with the reason for threatened 
homelessness ‘being evicted from private sector accommodation’. In 
2019/20 (up to 9 March 2020) there were 203 approaches with this reason.  

 Of those 389 cases approaching, only 151 cases progressed to an open 
case at Homeless stage, meaning that the Council’s assistance was either 
not needed, or efforts to prevent homelessness were successful.  

 Of those 151, a duty to accommodate would be owed to at least 83 of those 
cases.  

 If the policy changed to accommodating these cases at the point the notice 
expired in call cases, the number of households in temporary 
accommodation would increase dramatically.  

 Members should also note that in the case of the 68 applicants where there 
was not a duty to accommodate, the applicants could find themselves 
‘roofless’ if they have not been able to secure an alternative. 

 
COVID19 – Additional demands and pressures  

 
3.50 Since the start of the COVID19 crisis in approximately mid-March 2020, the 

Housing Needs service has had to deal with increased difficulties in providing the 
service. These have been wide-ranging, from the logistical to the operational.  

3.51 Logistical issues have included working out solutions to the limits on personal 
contact, such as limiting and then ending the possibility of face to face interviews, 
the closure of the Council reception area and the requirement of home working in 
order to reduce potential infection. Solutions have been an increase in the reliance 
on IT products which support the team in accepting online applications and the 
wider use of the Council’s IT solutions.  

3.52 Operational issues have been the demands placed on the service from an increase 
in numbers of approaches to the Council, and an increase in the amount of 
applications leading to the provision of accommodation.  

3.53 On 24 March 2020, following the Prime Minister’s address to the nation the 
previous evening, many hotels closed their doors and ejected 10 households 
without notice.  

3.54 On 27 March 2020, local authorities were instructed by the Government to assist 
all known rough sleepers and those who were at risk of rough sleeping into 
accommodation. As a consequence, Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council has 

Page 30



- 7 - 

provided accommodation to an additional 36 households that would not ordinarily 
be owed an accommodation duty.  

3.55 This increase is equivalent to the current average caseload of a single full time 
housing options officer.   

3.56 On the same date, the court service suspended all ongoing housing possession 
actions, effectively ending all evictions for the foreseeable future. At the time of 
writing this suspension is still in effect, however we anticipate unprecedented 
delays to possession action when the courts resume business.  

3.57 Due to these changes it is not currently feasible to accommodate households at 
the point of their notice expiring.  

3.58 The pressures placed upon the service arguably support the recommendation to 
continue with the existing methods, as opposed to making changes that would 
severely impact the ability to provide a functioning homelessness service.  

Alternative proposals  

3.59 In light of the recent landlord enquiries, the committee are asked to consider 
whether to continue with the policy and processes set out above for applicants 
where a housing duty exists, or to consider making provision to applicants where 
a duty is owed at the expiry of the Section 21 notice, regardless of whether suitable 
accommodation is available.  

 In cases where a duty to accommodate is owed, this will mean arranging 
accommodation even in cases where no suitable temporary 
accommodation is available, therefore placing applicants in hotels 

 The implication of this is that there will be a big increase in the number of 
households in hotel accommodation and this will have reputational, financial 
and potential legal implications for the council. 

3.60 There have also been discussions regarding providing advice to private sector 
tenants where no housing duty is owed, to suggest that they should relinquish their 
tenancy at the point of expiry of the Section 21 Notice.  However this would be in 
breach of the council’s legal duties and also potentially place these applicants at 
risk of being roofless, therefore this is not a feasible policy change. 

4 Legal Implication(s) 

4.1 Homelessness is determined in line with the current homelessness legislation, and 
the current Guidance issued by Government. This is defined in the Housing Act 
1996, as amended most recently by the Homelessness Reduction Act 2017.  

4.2 The Protection from Eviction Act 1977 ensures that Assured Shorthold Tenants 
cannot be required to leave rented property without a court order. Any attempts by 
landlords to remove them before this is obtained could give rise to action against 
the landlord for unlawful eviction, which is a criminal and civil offence.  

4.3 The Homelessness (Suitability of Accommodation) Order 2003 makes it unlawful 
for Local Authorities to provide hotels as family accommodation for longer than 6 
weeks.    

  

Page 31



- 8 - 

5 Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 If the council amends its current policy and as a result provides accommodation 
for all applicants where there is a legal duty at the expiry of the Section 21 Notice, 
regardless of whether there is suitable temporary accommodation available, this 
will lead to increasing expenditure as additional accommodation will need to be 
arranged, most likely using local hotels.  

5.2 The amount of expenditure will not be fully recouped by Housing Benefit and this 
will be a shortfall that WHBC will have to incur.  

5.3 The additional pressures placed on the service during the COVID19 crisis make a 
change in policy likely to overwhelm the Council’s ability to provide 
accommodation, increasing costs several fold.  

6 Risk Management Implications 

6.1 The risks related to the content of this report are: 

6.2 Reputational – the council is likely to face criticism if the number of households in 
temporary accommodation increase, particularly if there are a greater number of 
people in hotel accommodation. 

6.3 Financial – the cost of the additional hotel placements is difficult to estimate, 
however based on the figures provided in this report, there was a duty to 
accommodate 83 households across the two years; if you assume that they will be 
in hotel accommodation for two months (based on the extra length of time an 
applicant usually remains in a private sector tenancy) – this would be an annual 
increase in hotel costs of £199,200. (83 households/weekly cost of approximately 
£600 per week/8 weeks each household) 

6.4 Social – the council works hard to seek to prevent homelessness and keep the 
number of households in temporary accommodation to a minimum.  In particular 
we work hard to ensure that we only use hotel accommodation as a last resort, or 
where due to the volume of cases, demand for temporary accommodation is 
outstripping supply.  Provision of hotel accommodation is highly undesirable, as it 
is not an ideal environment for a family to live in, other than for a very short period. 

6.5 Legal – the council has a responsibility to provide housing advice to any applicant 
who approaches the council and there is a duty to prevent and relieve 
homelessness under the HRA.  Providing tenants with information about their 
rights in the context of a private sector tenancy forms part of this duty.  If the council 
is not clear in this advice, it could be subject to challenge.  Additionally, if the 
council provides temporary accommodation in the form of hotel accommodation to 
households with children, for more than six weeks, it will fall foul of the 
Homelessness (Suitability of Accommodation) Order 2003 which makes it unlawful 
for Local Authorities to provide hotels as family accommodation for longer than 6 
weeks. 

7 Security and Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 There are no known security or terrorism implications arising from this report. 

 

 

Page 32



- 9 - 

8 Procurement Implication(s) 

8.1 There may be procurement implications if extra expenditure is incurred due to 
additional costs of accommodation 

 

9 Climate Change Implication(s) 

9.1 There are unlikely to be any climate change implications  

10 Human Resources Implication(s) 

10.1 There may be human resources implications if extra expenditure is incurred due 
to additional costs of accommodation and the temporary accommodation team is 
required to manage additional units of accommodation.  

11 Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

11.1 Suitable housing is a significant factor in ensuring that people have positive health 
and well-being. 

11.2 As set out in Para 6.4, it could be detrimental to the applicant or their households 
health and well-being, if they are living in hotel accommodation.  

12 Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 

12.1 There are unlikely to be any communication and engagement implications  

13 Link to Corporate Priorities 

13.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priority ‘Our Housing’, 
and specifically to the achievement of ‘plan for current and future housing need’ 

14 Equality and Diversity 

14.1  An EqIA was not completed because this report does not propose changes to 
existing service-related policies or the development of new service-related policies. 

 
 
Name of author David Trewick 
Title Housing Options Manager 
Date 29.05.2020 
 
 
 
Background papers to be listed: 

Appendix A 

 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A

Q1
16/17

Q2
16/17

Q3
16/17

Q4
16/17

Q1
17/18

Q2
17/18

Q3
17/18

Q4
17/18

Q1
18/19

Q2
18/19

Q3
18/19

Q4
18/19

Q1
19/20

Q2
19/20

Q3
19/20

Q4
19/20

Numbers in TA 80 67 74 64 65 70 77 97 97 118 115 96 104 113 115 124

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

Numbers in TA 

P
age 35



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Part I 
Item No:  
For Decision 

 
 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET – 8 SEPTEMBER 2020  
 
Recommendation from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 28 July 2020:- 
 
 
SCRUTINY ON ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR 
 
Members considered the report of the Corporate Director (Housing and Communities) 
setting out the findings of the Social Overview and Scrutiny Committee (SOSC) sub-
committee on anti-social behaviour.  
 
The scrutiny had started in March 2019 and with the election, purdah and Covid-19 
promoting delay.  
 
The report set out the scope of the scrutiny, aims and objectives and findings.   
 
Members noted that:   
 

 ASB was “very low” and there was a higher prevalence of ASB in Welwyn Garden 
City than Hatfield.  

 It was not easy to ascertain if ASB was committed by young or old people due to the 
limitations of police data.  

 Perpetrators might not always be resident in borough and could come as far as 
London.  Welwyn Garden City was an attractive place for young people with good 
public transport connectivity, a relatively safe public realm, free Wi-Fi and fast food 
outlets and the Howard centre. It was understood that young people want to feel safe 
themselves.  

 There was a fair spread of youth diversionary activities between Welwyn Garden City 
and Hatfield, however those delivered by organisations such as the borough Council 
and County Council were more targeted for those demonstrating vulnerabilities 
compared to those delivered by non-statutory organisations. 

 There could be a gap in provision as there was a lot of sport orientated activity which 
did not appeal to everyone.  

 The scrutiny panel found that Council teams were doing an excellent job in providing 
youth diversionary activities.  

 From April 2020 a one off increase of £50K would be added to the budget for youth 
provision.  Full council approved this as part of the budget setting.  The Panel wanted 
to ensure that the recommendations from the scrutiny report influenced how that 
budget was spent.  Suggestions were to support KGV Wheels Park and the voluntary 
sector as well. 

 
Members welcomed the report and the following points were raised:  
 

 It was suggested that the Youth Council or Hertfordshire County Council could help 
in finding out how best to communicate with young people, so they could access 
information about youth activities.   

Page 37

Agenda Item 9a



 The sub-committee did look at ASB case load and response time for cases reported 
and it was felt that resources were sufficient if the level of ASB in the borough 
remained the same.  

 Members were concerned about the level of ASB at King George V park and 
Moneyhole Playing Fields, and the possibility of further police monitoring.  Officers 
advised that the important message was for the public to report incidents to the 
police. The police could then look at potential hotspots and decide how to deploy 
their limited resources on a daily basis.  

 The Positive Pathways project, which was unique to Welwyn Hatfield and funded by 
Youth Connections and WHBC, engaged young people positively away from 
negative behaviours. The Executive Member, Regeneration, Economic Development 
and Partnerships advised that the Streetwardens were doing more calls to hotspots. 

 Some Members commented that the report would have been more complete had it 
included detailed mapping on ASB activities and free youth provision across the 
borough, in particular the correlation between youth activities and ASB hotspots, 
such as Welwyn Garden City Town Centre and Woodhall shopping parade.  

 Members supported the idea of using the extra budget to support the Wheels Park at 
King George V park. 

 Members felt that the County Council had a greater responsibility in plugging the gap 
in youth provision.   
 

Members suggested that the fifth recommendation in the report be amended to not only look 
at the impact of the grant but at the progress on all the recommendations in the report. 
 
Councillor P.Zukowskyj and Councillor G.Hayes then forward an additional recommendation 
to those in the report:  
 
 “For the Executive Member to take our findings to County and lobby them for more 
resources in the Welwyn Hatfield area”.  
 
Councillor M.Cowan then put forward a further amendment to the previous suggested 
additional recommendation: 
 
“For Officers to engage voluntary and charitable groups in the Welwyn Hatfield area and 
encourage them to provide more youth activities.” 
  
It was then put to the vote and  
 
 RESOLVED: 

(Unanimously) 
 

That the Overview and Scrutiny Committee agree to the recommendations set out in 
the report on the Anti-Social Behaviour Sub-Committee (1 – 5, as amended) as well 
as the additional recommendation (6). 
 

1. To review the current method of communicating with young people so that they are 
able to access the information they require regarding youth provision and activities 
available to them and to consider if there are any additional methods that could 
improve the reach.  This should include providing a table of the available activities. 
 

2. That the budget provision of £50,000 for more youth services to reduce anti-social 
behaviour, agreed by Cabinet for the 2020/21 budget, be ring-fenced and carried 
over to the next municipal year if not used. This is because of delays caused by the 
Covid-19 pandemic and Purdah, which may lead to an under spend. 

Page 38



 
3. That the group support the use of some of this additional budget to be used to 

modernize the Wheels Park at King George V. 
 

4. That this budget could be used in part to provide a small grant fund for one year, in 
addition to the current community grant fund and to be applied for in the same way, 
to be made available for youth provision (11-19 year olds). The provision would have 
to be sustainable and would have to be in addition to what is currently available. 

 
5. Subject to agreement of Recommendation 4, that a report be submitted to the 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee in 12 months’ time to look at the impact of the 
grants and other recommendations in this report. 
 

6. Additional recommendation:  For the Executive Member to take our findings to 
Hertfordshire County Council and lobby them for more resources in the Welwyn 
Hatfield area and for Officers to engage with voluntary and charitable groups in the 
area to encourage them to provide more youth activities.   

 
 
 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY  
SUB-COMMITTEE 

 
YOUTH ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR 

 
 

  

Page 41



 

1 

BACKGROUND 
 
At the Social Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting of 21 January 2019, Members 
proposed that a Scrutiny Sub-Committee be agreed, to scrutinise the balance of the 
provision for free and/or low cost youth activities in respect of current levels of anti-
social behaviour, between the towns of Hatfield and Welwyn Garden City. The Scrutiny 
Sub-Committee would also consider possible actions to reduce levels of ASB.   
 
Membership of the Sub-Committee was agreed as Councillors L.Chesterman 
(Chairman), J.Cragg, P.Hebden and A.Rohale.  
 
 
 
  

Page 42



 

2 

SCOPING 
 
The first meeting of the group was held on 6 March 2019. At this meeting the Sub-
Committee agreed the scope of the report.   
 
A copy of the scoping report is attached at Appendix A. 
 
Members agreed the scoping process should clearly identify what the scrutiny exercise 
intended, distinguishing between what would be included and achievable and that 
which may be desirable but beyond the parameters of this particular scrutiny exercise.  
 
Achievable Aims and Objectives: 
 

1. To establish who is responsible for a given service and that it is being delivered. 
2. To be involved with the work of the Community Safety Partnership.  
3. To correlate between incidents of anti-social behavior and the current provision 

of youth activities. 
4. To identify hotspots of anti-social behaviour. 
5. To identify contributory factors to, and trends of, anti-social behaviour and 

social-economic groups. 
6. To examine the provision of youth activities provided in Hatfield in comparison 

to those offered in Welwyn Garden City. 
 
Desirable Aims and Objectives:  
 

1. To obtain a detailed profile of the incidents of anti-social behaviour by type, 
perpetrators and location. 

2. To increase the provision of free and cheaper activities in Welwyn Garden City. 
 
Members agreed the definition of a youth as being a young person aged between 11-
19 years of age. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 43



 

3 

METHODOLOGY 
 
At the inaugural meeting, 16 October 2019, Members determined meetings to which 
Officers and the relevant Portfolio Holder would be invited to attend. The Safer 
Neighbourhood Team Inspector would be invited to a future meeting to provide 
information on perpetrators of anti-social behaviour. Members would consider the 
following reports and documents: 
 

 Redacted example minutes of a Multi-Agency Group for the Prevention of 
Youth Exclusion (MAGPYE) meeting. 

 Redacted example minutes of a Joint Advisory Group (JAG) meeting.  JAG is 
the operational group of the Responsible Authorities Group (RAG) – which in 
turn is the strategic body responsible for the Community Safety Partnership. 

 Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 

 Welwyn Hatfield Youth Action Plan 

 Positive Pathways Project 
 

Other information and statistics would be obtained from relevant sources as the 
scrutiny progressed.  
 
At the meeting held on 7 January 2020, Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council’s (WHBC) 
Neighbourhood and Enforcement Manager, Kerry Clifford and Police Constable’s Glen 
Cook and James Tassle, gave a presentation on ASB statistics. WHBC Community 
Partnership’s Manager, Matt Rayner, gave Members an overview of statutory, local 
and county commissioned services for youths, the Youth Survey and the Youth 
Strategy. The Officers gave detailed answers to further concerns and questions from 
Members of the Sub-Committee.   
 
On 11 February 2020, Members selected more documents to be considered and 
added to the Scoping Brief: 
 

 The Welwyn Hatfield Young People’s Strategy 2019-2020 

 Anti-Social Behaviour Strategy and Policy 

 WHBC Sports Facilities Strategy 

 County Strategic Assessment 
 
Members agreed that local residents who had been the victim of ASB, would be invited 
to the next meeting to discuss their experiences. Unfortunately the meeting had to be 
cancelled due to the Covid-19 pandemic situation. 
 
On 27 February 2020, Councillors A.Rohale and P.Hebden attended a Youth Council  
Meeting held in the Sycamore Room of the Council offices. Members attending found 
the young people of the Youth Council to be enthusiastic with much to say about 
provision in the local area. The young people felt that activities delivered privately were 
expensive and difficult to afford, especially if there were more than one young person 
in the family. Dance and drama activities were particularly cost prohibitive and with 
limited availability locally. 
 
The young people of the Youth Council felt that the uptake of activities provided at 
County level, was less than it should be. They believed that this was due to 

Page 44



 

4 

communication issues whereby young people could not access information on what 
was available. 
 
 
On 5 March 2020, Councillors L.Chesterman and P.Hebden attended a JAG meeting 
where they were given a 20 minute timeslot on the agenda. Members were impressed 
by the number of different services represented at the meeting and the excellent 
service WHBC provided for young people who were vulnerable or with problematic 
issues. 
 
The meeting held on 8 July 2020 was attended by Councillor B. Sarson, Portfolio 
Holder for Regeneration, Economic Development and Partnerships who was invited 
along to answer questions from the Youth Scrutiny Sub-Committee.  
 
Mark Hughes, the YC Herts Broxbourne, East Herts, Welwyn Hatfield Area Team 
Manager attended the meeting held on 8 July 2020 and gave a detailed presentation 
on the number of projects and services offered by YC Herts and the key projects that 
they delivered across the Welwyn Hatfield Borough.  Members were impressed with 
the passion and dedication demonstrated by Mark and the range of activities available 
to support young people locally. 
 
Members enquired about the budget provision of £50,000, agreed in principle by 
Cabinet. This budget is currently in an earmarked reserve, to support the work 
delivered by the Community Partnership Team in respect of youth services. Members 
enquired whether it was possible for any underspend to be ring-fenced and used in 
the next municipal year as the Covid-19 pandemic had caused delays to the work of 
the Youth ASB Sub-Committee.   
 
Councillor Sarson discussed with Members the decision to allocate some of the budget 
provision towards the King George V Wheel Park Project. This proposal was 
supported by the group. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Statutory Responsibilities 
 
Community Safety 
 
Community Safety Partnerships (CSPs) are in place to help tackle crime and reduce 
reoffending and were set up under Sections 5-7 of the Crime & Disorder Act 1998. 
There are about 300 CSPs in England and 22 in Wales usually at district or unitary 
authority level and are made up of representatives from Police, Probation Service, 
Local Authority, Health, Fire and Rescue authorities.  
 
The CSP is overseen by the Responsible Authorities Group (RAG).  In Welwyn 
Hatfield the RAG membership is as follows: 
 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 
Herts County Council 

Page 45



 

5 

National Probation Service 
Clinical Commissioning Groups 
University of Hertfordshire 
Hertfordshire Constabulary 
Herts Fire and Rescue 
 
The Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner attend by invitation. 
The CSP has a Community Safety Plan and three-year Action.  One of the key 
priorities is to tackle anti-social behaviour. 
 
Youth Services 
 
The legislation that supports youth work is described in detail in the Statutory 
Guidance on Section 507B Education Act 1996 published in March 2008. This 
statutory guidance sets out the requirements for local authorities (in this Borough 
upper tier, Herts County Council) to provide youth work in three areas: positive 
activities, decision making by young people and 14-19 learning. 
 
Section 507B of the Education Act 1996, introduced through Section 6 of the 
Education and Inspections Act 2006, ensures that the local authority working in the 
context of the Children’s Trust holds the lead responsibility for securing young people’s 
access to positive activities 
 
This duty applies to the 13-19 age range extending to 24 for young people with learning 
difficulties. The duty is qualified by the term “reasonably practicable”  
 
The duty sets out two forms of activity (not mutually exclusive) to improve well-being. 
The first activity is “educational leisure-time activities”. The legislation also includes 
sufficient educational leisure time activity and associated facilities that are for the 
improvement of young people’s personal and social development. This sub-set relates 
to activities that are delivered using youth work methods and approaches. 
 
The second activity is “recreational leisure-time activities” which includes sports and 
informal physical activities as well as a wide range of cultural activities including music, 
performing and visual arts. 
 
Within Hertfordshire these services are primarily delivered by Youth Connections, 
which is a service provided by Hertfordshire County Council. 
 
FINDINGS 
 
The presentation from members of the CSP set out for members of the sub committee 
the level of anti-social behaviour across the borough and the geographical location. 
 
In brief, the level of anti-social behaviour by young people is very low in, but there is a 
higher prevalence in Welwyn Garden City. 
 
The perpetrators, albeit low in numbers, come from locations across the borough and 
a small number reside outside the borough. 
 

Page 46



 

6 

The Sub Committee were presented with a detailed list of activities which are provided 
via the partnership, including a range of youth diversionary activities.  These are 
located throughout the borough, so activities are provided in both Hatfield and Welwyn 
Garden City. 
 
The CSP also presented information about targeted youth diversionary projects, 
including Positive Pathways, which is unique to Welwyn Hatfield and the SOS project 
(countywide).  These projects focus on the most vulnerable young people who are 
involved or at risk of being involved in criminal activity. 
 
The CSP consider that the reason that there is a concentration of anti-social behaviour 
in Welwyn Garden City is due to the connectivity and facilities in the town centre 
(McDonalds and other fast food outlets, free Wi-Fi, well-lit public realm) 
 
Partnership Working 
 
The sub committee were presented with the partnership framework, which includes 
the RAG and JAG, but also the 11-19 Group, which is a non-statutory body made up 
of up to 40 organisations (statutory, voluntary, charitable); this group oversees the 
borough’s Youth Strategy and the delivery of the associated Action Plan. 
 
 
CONSIDERATIONS OF SUB COMMITTEE 
 

1. The Youth Scrutiny Review had taken much longer than anticipated due to the 
restraints caused by Purdah and the Covid-19 pandemic. 

 
2. There was a very small percentage of young people causing ASB. Out of 

approximately 15,000 young people (aged 10-19) across the district, there were 
a group of approximately 40 young people where extensive intervention had 
been required. Not all ASB was committed by young people. 

 
3. ASB perpetrators may not be resident in the area. There were good travel links 

to Welwyn Garden City and many young people travelled to the town centre 
from London, Hatfield, Stevenage and other areas. The town centre was a 
hotspot for young people with MacDonald’s and the Howard Centre. 

 
4. WHBC was not the statutory provider of youth provision.  The Head of 

Community and Housing Strategy would provide the legal framework for this. 
 

5. A table should be provided summarising the nature of activities in the district. 
 

6. Was there a gap in the provision on offer if a young person was not interested 
in sport? 

 
7. Was there a gap in provision for an activity that was not structured, such as a 

youth centre drop in? 
 

8. The Youth ASB Scrutiny findings were that the WHBC teams and the 
Partnership were doing an excellent job with the resources available. 

Page 47



 

7 

 
9. Members are interested in how communication about activities can be 

maximized and that this should be done safely.  Young people should be 
encouraged not to share personal information on the social media platform Tik 
Tok due to safety issues and the scope for misuse. Personal information could 
easily be accessed on this platform. 
 

10. At Full Council it was agreed that £50k be added to a new earmarked reserve 
for youth service, and the expenditure of which will be delegated to Corporate 
Management Team, in consultation with the Leader and Executive Member for 
Resources. 

 
11. KGV Wheel Park – the Members were in support that some of the additional 

budget provision would be put towards this project. 
 

12. The group recognised that statutory services need to focus on provision for the 
most vulnerable, but this can lead to gaps for those who are less so, but who 
may not be able to afford paid activities. 
 

13. The members were keen to help support the charitable and voluntary sector 
who provide services to a wider group, often at a lower cost.  They felt that 
perhaps some of the additional funding could be made available to support 
these groups. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 48



 

8 

 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

1. To review the current method of communicating with young people so that they 
are able to access the information they require regarding youth provision and 
activities available to them and to consider if there are any additional methods 
that could improve the reach.  This should include providing a table of the 
available activities. 
 

2. That the budget provision of £50,000 for more youth services to reduce anti-
social behaviour, agreed by Cabinet for the 2020/21 budget, be ring-fenced and 
carried over to the next municipal year if not used. This is because of delays 
caused by the Covid-19 pandemic and Purdah, which may lead to an 
underspend. 
 

3. That the group support the use of some of this additional budget to be used to 
modernize the Wheels Park at King George V. 

 
4. That this budget could be used in part to provide a small grant fund for one 

year, in addition to the current community grant fund and to be applied for in 
the same way, to be made available for youth provision (11-19 year olds). The 
provision would have to be sustainable and would have to be in addition to what 
is currently available. 

 
5. Subject to agreement of Recommendation 4, that a report be submitted to the 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee in 12 months’ time to look at the impact of 
the grants. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 49



 

9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THE NEXT STEPS 
 
A copy of this report would be presented to the Overview and Scrutiny Meeting on 28 
July 2020. 
 
 
 
  

Page 50



 

10 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 
 
The Sub-Committee expressed its thanks to the Officers and the Executive Member 
who took the time to attend meetings of the Sub-Committee, to respond to questions 
and contribute to the scrutiny exercise. 
 
 
 
  

Page 51



 

11 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

 Minutes of the meetings of the Sub-Committee 

 Presentation from the Community Safety Partnership  

 Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 

 WHBC Anti-Social Behaviour Strategy 

 WHBC Anti-Social Behaviour Policy 

 Welwyn Hatfield Youth Action Plan for 2019-2020 

 Positive Pathways Project early Stage Review – Second Draft 

 PCC Funding Feedback Report – Positive Pathways Project 18/19 

 Welwyn Hatfield Young People’s Strategy 2019-2020 

 Hertfordshire Continuum of Need Thresholds Document 

 Welwyn Hatfield Youth Referral Pathways 

 Redacted Welwyn Hatfield MAGPYE minutes 

 Redacted Welwyn Hatfield Youth Action Panel minutes 

 Redacted JAG minutes 

 WHBC Sports Facilities Strategy 

 County Strategic Assessment 

 Youth Survey 

 Presentation from the Youth Connections Service Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 52



 

12 

 
 
 
APPENDIX A 
 
 

Scrutiny Scoping Meeting  
6 March 2019 

 
 

 
Scrutiny Title 

 
Anti-Social Behaviour 

 

 
Type of 
Scrutiny 

 
The Sub-Committee was appointed by Social Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on 21 January 2019. 
 

 
Scrutiny Sub 
Committee 
Members 

 
Lynn Chesterman (C)  
(Proposed by Councillor P.Hebden and seconded by Councillor J.Cragg) 
Julie Cragg 
Peter Hebden 
Ayesha Rohale  
 

 
Officer Support 
Marie Lowe 
Governance Services Officer 
 

 
Portfolio Holder: 
Councillor Bernard Sarson 

 
Key 
Stakeholders 
 

 
Residents and businesses of Welwyn Hatfield. 
Local Partnerships 
 

 
Summary of 
Enquiry 

Each scrutiny needs to have a clear rationale behind it, which explains why 
the scrutiny is important. A clear rationale will also help clarify the 
indicators of success. 
 

 Scrutiny of the balance of provision of free and/or cheaper youth 
activities available for residents between the towns of Hatfield and 
Welwyn Garden City and different areas of the towns in relation to 
current levels of anti-social behaviour and actions to reduce these. 
 

 A more detailed scope of the scrutiny exercise would be agreed at a 
first informal meeting of the Scrutiny Sub-Committee. 

 
 
Scrutiny Aims 
and Objectives: 

 
It is essential that the scoping process clearly identifies exactly what the 
scrutiny hopes to achieve. Distinguish between what will be included and 
achievable and that which may be desirable but will not be covered by this 
project. 
 

Page 53



 

13 

Achievable: 
 

 Who is responsible for which services and are these being provided. 
 To be involved with the work of the Community Safety Partnership. 
 To identify the correlation between incidents of ASB and current 

provision of youth activities.  
 To identify the hotspots for incidents of ASB. 
 To identify contributory factors and trends to incidents of ASB and 

the social-economic groups. 
 An analysis of the provision provided in Hatfield in comparison to 

those offered in Welwyn Garden City. 
 
Desirable: 
 

 To obtain a detailed profile of the incidents of ASB, by type, 
perpetrators and location.   

 Increase in the provision of free and cheaper activities in Welwyn 
Garden City. 

 
 
Link with 
Corporate 
Priorities: 

 
To work together to keep Welwyn Hatfield a great place to live, work and 
study in a vibrant and growing economy 
 
Our priorities and objectives 
 

 Our Community - Safe Communities Public Health Sport & Leisure 
Art and Culture 

 Our Housing - Quality Landlord Housing Need Affordable Homes 
Housing Quality 

 Our Environment - Clean Streets Waste & Recycling Green Spaces 
Parking 

 Our Economy - Sustainable Growth Neighbourhood & Town Centres 
Business Friendly  

 Our Council – Equality and Fairness Value for Money Customer 
First 
 
Our Values - Integrity Fairness Respect Transparent Responsive 
Innovative 
 

Indicators of 
Success: 

For each scrutiny identify two or three key indicators which will be used to 
tell you if the review is achieving its purpose. It can also help to avoid the 
potential danger of straying off the topic. 
 

 Number of ASB incidents reduced. 

 Number of youth activities increased. 

 Successful outcomes of young people.   
 

Methodology / 
Approach 

This requires consideration as to the kind of enquiry which will be most 
suitable for this review. Some ways of working are listed below: 

Page 54



 

14 

 

 Obtain a broader picture across the County and nationally to provide a 
comparison and perspective 

 By obtaining relevant information and evidence from the Police and 
other members of the Community Partnership what is currently being 
done, what could be done and if not why not 

 By asking questions of Officers/ Executive Members 

 Receiving a briefing note 

 Requesting one or more Members to carry out visits / investigations on 
their behalf and report back 

 Holding one or more public hearings which are specially designed to 
enable members of the public, interest groups etc. to give their views. 

 Potential site visits 
 

Witnesses / 
Experts 

An important part of the scoping process includes deciding what people 
should be asked for interview. Cabinet Members and officers are required 
by the Constitution to attend to explain decisions, the extent which actions 
taken complement council policy and their performance. 

 

 Members of the Community Safety Partnership (CSP) including  

 Police and Crime Commissioner for Hertfordshire, and the local 
Criminal Justice Board 

 Hertfordshire Constabulary 
 Hertfordshire Fire and Rescue Service 
 Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 
 Hertfordshire County Council 
 East and North Hertfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group 
 National Probation Service 
 BENCH Community Rehabilitation Company 
 University of Hertfordshire 
 YMCA 
 Local community and voluntary groups who participate  
 YC Herts 
 Residents-victims of ASB 

 Relevant Members of the Executive and senior Officers of the 
Council. 

 PCSO 

 Streetwardens 

Evidence 
Sources for 
Documents 

Part of the scoping process is to determine which sort of documents may 
need to be considered before writing any report and can take a variety of 
forms. 
 

 YMCA recent report   
 Community Partnership Strategy 

Page 55

http://www.herts.police.uk/
http://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/services/commsafe/commprotect/hfrs/
http://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/
https://www.enhertsccg.nhs.uk/
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/national-offender-management-service
http://benchcrc.org.uk/
https://www.herts.ac.uk/


 

15 

 Anti-Social Behaviour Strategy 
 Youth Strategy 
 ASB Strategy 
 Sports Facilities Strategy 
 County Strategic Strategy 

 

Review 
implications / 
impacts / risks 
 
Consider 
financial, social, 
economic, legal, 
equality.  

Identify the implications if matters do not change, covering: budget 
overspend / high level of budget commitment, government guidance 
legislation etc. 
 

 Incidents of ASB increases 
 Residents continue to feel unsafe in their communities. 
 Young people do not fulfil their full potential. 
 The Borough and its town centres become unattractive to visitors 

businesses and visitors 
 

Timescales Set the timescale for: 
 

Projected start date:          ___________________ 

Meeting frequency:            ___________________ 

Draft report deadline:         ___________________ 

Projected completion date: ___________________ 

 
 
 
 

Page 56



Document is Restricted

Page 57

Agenda Item 12a
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 61

Agenda Item 12b
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 ACTIONS STATUS REPORT
	7a Review of the Medium Term Financial Strategy (Forward Plan Reference FP989)
	7b Queensway House Cladding (Forward Plan Reference FP1000)
	8a Homelessness Process Report
	8a - Homelessness process 06 2020
	8a - Homelessness Process Appendix A

	9a Scrutiny on Anti-Social Behaviour
	9a - ASB Scrutiny 07 20

	12a Award of Arboriculture Contracts (Forward Plan Reference FP998)
	12b Queensway House Cladding (Forward Plan Reference FP1000)

